

Fabrication of planar semiconductor diodes : an educational laboratory experiment

Citation for published version (APA):

Heijnen, C. J. H., Jansen, H. A., Olijslagers, J. F. G. J., & Versnel, W. (1981). Fabrication of planar semiconductor diodes : an educational laboratory experiment. (EUT report. É, Fac. of Electrical Engineering; Vol. 81-E-119). Technische Hogeschool Eindhoven.

Document status and date: Published: 01/01/1981

Document Version:

Publisher's PDF, also known as Version of Record (includes final page, issue and volume numbers)

Please check the document version of this publication:

• A submitted manuscript is the version of the article upon submission and before peer-review. There can be important differences between the submitted version and the official published version of record. People interested in the research are advised to contact the author for the final version of the publication, or visit the DOI to the publisher's website.

• The final author version and the galley proof are versions of the publication after peer review.

• The final published version features the final layout of the paper including the volume, issue and page numbers.

Link to publication

General rights

Copyright and moral rights for the publications made accessible in the public portal are retained by the authors and/or other copyright owners and it is a condition of accessing publications that users recognise and abide by the legal requirements associated with these rights.

- · Users may download and print one copy of any publication from the public portal for the purpose of private study or research.
- You may not further distribute the material or use it for any profit-making activity or commercial gain
 You may freely distribute the URL identifying the publication in the public portal.

If the publication is distributed under the terms of Article 25fa of the Dutch Copyright Act, indicated by the "Taverne" license above, please follow below link for the End User Agreement:

www.tue.nl/taverne

Take down policy

If you believe that this document breaches copyright please contact us at:

openaccess@tue.nl

providing details and we will investigate your claim.



Fabrication of Planar Semiconductor Diodes, an educational laboratory experiment

Bу

C.J.H. Heijnen, H.A. Jansen, J.F.G.J. Olijslagers and W. Versnel



Eindhoven University of Technology Research Reports EINDHOVEN UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY

> Department of Electrical Engineering Eindhoven The Netherlands

FABRICATION OF PLANAR SEMICONDUCTOR DIODES, AN EDUCATIONAL LABORATORY EXPERIMENT

Ву

C.J.H. Heijnen H.A. Jansen J.F.G.J. Olijslagers W. Versnel

EUT Report 81-E-119 ISBN 90-6144-119-6

> Eindhoven April 1981

Contents

1.	Introduction	1
2.	General survey of the experiment	1
3.	Steps in the fabrication of the device	2
4.	More detailed description of the process steps	5
5.	Diffusion equation and impurity profile	11
6.	Application of masks	12
7.	Possible measurements on the devices	14
8.	Discussions and conclusion	15
Acknowledgements		15
References		16
Appendices 1 and 2.		17

Abstract.

A description is given of a laboratory experiment, in which students themselves manufacture semiconductor diodes and resistors in half a day. The process used is characterized by diffusion of impurities from an oxide layer into silicon and is not critical in this case. The oxide with impurities is formed at a temperature of 359° C by chemical vapour deposition of silane, oxygen and phosphine.

Heijnen, C.J.H., H.A. Jansen, J.F.G.J. Olijslagers and W. Versnel FABRICATION OF PLANAR SEMICONDUCTOR DIODES, AN EDUCATIONAL LABORATORY EXPERIMENT. Department of Electrical Engineering, Eindhoven University of Technology, 1981. EUT Report 81-E-119

Address of the authors:

Electronic Devices Group, Department of Electrical Engineering, Eindhoven University of Technology, P.O. Box 513, 5600 MB EINDHOVEN, The Netherlands

1. INTRODUCTION

The idea of this experiment is to enable students to make their own semiconductor devices on which they finally perform a number of measurements.

Many strictly prescribed operations have to be carried out in making a semiconductor device. This is contrary to the now well-established practice in student experiments, where the instructions are so formulated that the students are confronted with a number of problems which they have to solve themselves. The intention was here to make that part of the experiment in which no deviations from the instructions are allowed, i.e. the fabrication, as short as possible. In the experiment described here that takes half a day (i.e. four hours). (See [1] for a one-year semiconductor technology course). This has been achieved first by making only simple devices, diodes and resistors of comparatively large dimensions, and second by using the technique of diffusion from doped oxide layers [2] obtained by chemical vapour deposition (shortly CVD) instead of the usual technique of gas diffusion [3].

The fabrication is described in this report. The measurements to be performed subsequently and that takes two more half days, are only shortly summarized (section 7), as they have been dealt with extensively elsewhere [4].

In Sections 2 to 6 the experiment is described as presented to the students. A drawing of the CVD reactor is given in appendix 1. In appendix 2 the lay-out and dimensions of the room in which the students do the experiment is shown.

2. GENERAL SURVEY OF THE EXPERIMENT

The original slice of p-type silicon has a diameter of 5.7 cm (2½ inches) and a thickness of 400 μ m. The specific resistance of the slice is $\rho = 1.8 - 2.4 \ \Omega$ cm.

At certain positions n-type regions will be formed by diffusion. The depth of the n-type diffusion is of the order of 1 μ m. The configuration obtained is shown in Fig. 1.



Fig. 1 Configuration of slice with diffused n-regions in a p-substrate

-1-

After all the actions have been performed, the slice is cut along the broken lines (see Fig. 1), resulting in a large number of diodes and resistors (more than 4000).

Slice cutting will not be done by the students. They just measure the electrical behaviour of the diodes and the resistors on the slice itself.

In the next section the steps that lead to a semiconductor device will be treated summarily, and the separate process steps are described in more detail in section 4. In Section 5 an introduction is given on the diffusion equation and on impurity profiles. In Section 6 we deal with the applied masks. Several measurements can be carried out on the devices obtained. They are summed up in Section 7.

3. THE STEPS IN THE FABRICATION OF THE DEVICE

In this section a general description will be given of the steps that have to be taken to obtain a semiconductor device.

(1) Thermal oxidation

Silicon reacts with oxygen at temperatures above $900^{\circ}C$ [3]. The outer layer of the slice oxidizes, so that the slice is covered by a layer of SiO₂. An oxide produced in this way is called a thermal oxide.

The oxide has the following advantages:

- The oxide layer acts as a protecting mask against penetration of impurities.
- The layer is an insulator. This makes it possible to put conducting strips on the oxide which make contact with the silicon only at those places where windows are present in the oxide layer.
- 3. The crystal lattice of silicon dioxide matches fairly well with the crystal lattice of silicon. This implies a kind of stabilization of the silicon surface: foreign atoms can easily attach themselves to the surface of uncovered silicon.

(2) Photographic process

In order to obtain windows in the oxide a photographic process is used. The oxide is covered with a thin, uniform layer of photoresist, a lightsensitive material. By means of a mask, i.e. a photographic (glass) plate with a black and white pattern for the windows, the photoresist is partially exposed to light. Polymerization occurs at the exposed regions.

- 2 -

By means of a developer the photoresist at the unexposed regions^{*} is removed. Then, the slice is placed in a bath filled with a silicon etch. The oxide will be etched away only at those regions where the photoresist layer has been removed (Fig. 2).

(3) Oxidation by the CVD process

In addition to the thermal oxidation process another oxidation process is applied in the semiconductor technology, viz. by chemical vapour deposition (CVD). In the latter process the gaseous silicon compound silane SiH₄ is used. At 350° C silane already reacts with oxygen to form SiO₂ which we will call silox. This is done in a glass holder, the CVD reactor ^{**)}(Fig. 3). We refer to $\begin{bmatrix} 5 \end{bmatrix}$ for a more professional equipment.

The slice is placed in the reactor whose heating-plate is at a temperature of 350° C. The silane is rarefied with argon. Together with oxygen it is made to flow along the slice so that the slice is covered with a layer of SiO₂ (Fig. 4). This process is called deposition. By mixing the gas with phosphine PH₃, a gaseous phosphorus compound, at the same time, phosphorus atoms can be built into the silox. Afterwards, the phosphorus atoms can be diffused from the oxide in the silicon where the silox layer is in contact with the silicon surface, i.e. in the windows made in the thermal oxide layer.



Fig. 2 Photographic process

- *) This is true for so-called negative photoresist. Positive photoresist also exists. Then, the resist layer will remain at the unexposed regions.
- **) See Appendix 1 for more details. A drawing in A2 format (42 x 60 cm) is available on request.

-3-



Fig. 3 Silox reactor



Fig. 4 Slice covered with thermal oxide and silox layer

(4) Drive-in diffusion

In the following it is assumed that phosphorus is present in the silox layer. The slice with the silox is heated in the oven at a high temperature $(900^{\circ}-1200^{\circ}C)$ [2]. n-type regions are then formed. These n-type regions are slightly larger than the windows in the thermal oxide layer due to the fact that the diffusion also takes place parallel to the plane of the surface.

(5) Fabrication of contacts

After the diffusion, windows are etched in the silox (Fig. 5). Then, by evaporating aluminium, contacts are formed on the slice. Subsequently, the aluminium layer must be removed from places where no conduction should occur (Fig. 6). Again this is done by a photographic process. The remaining aluminium pads are suitable to bonding gold wires.



Fig. 5 Windows in silox layer



In the next section the process steps leading from slice to diode will be treated successively in more detail.

·· - -

It should be noted that in the figures the dimensions in the vertical direction are considerably exaggerated to those in the horizontal direction.

4. MORE DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF THE PROCESS STEPS^{*)}

The smooth surface of the silicon slice should be at the upper side.

 $^{*)}$ In Appendix 2 a sketch of the room with the necessary apparatus is given.

.....

For the sake of economy only a quarter of a slice is used.

First step. Cleaning. This is necessary to remove organic and other contaminations from the surface. The slice is successively put into a solution of trichloro-ethylene, into propanol and into deionized water. Then the slice is placed in a boiling mixture of chloride HCl and nitric acid HNO₃ (ratio 3:1) for 10 minutes. It has to be rinsed again afterwards in deionized water. Finally the slice is dried by centrifugation. Second step. Thermal oxidation. The slice is covered with a layer of SiO₂ 3000 Ångströms (0.3 μ m) in thickness. This takes two hours in a furnace at a temperature of 1200°C. The flow of oxygen is 1 1/min. Note: The two steps mentioned above have been carried out beforehand. The next ones should be done by the students.

Third step. Etching of windows. Windows have to be etched in the silicon oxide at prescribed locations. For this purpose only one half of a quarter of a slice is used. At the same time the thermal oxide is removed completely from the other half. The latter is to be used for the measurements of junction depth and sheet resistance (see Section 7).

The etching of the windows comprises a number of separate actions. 3a. <u>Applying photoresist</u>. The slice is put into a spinner. It is maintained in position by underpressure, obtained by means of a vacuum pump. Five drops of negative resist HR 100 (Waycoat brand) are allowed to fall on the slice. Immediately afterwards the slice is rotated at a rate of 6000 revs. per minute. The slice is then covered by a uniform very thin layer of photoresist.

3b. Drying. The slice is now carefully placed on a hot metal plate the temperature of which is 90°C, and dried at this temperature for 5 minutes. 3c. Exposing. The slice is placed in an exposure apparatus. Use of a mask ensures that those areas of the slice where the windows should appear are not exposed in the oxide layer. The exposure time is 10 seconds. 3d. Photo developing. The photoresist is developed in xylene for 1 minute. Then the slice is successively put into propanol and deionized water, for 1 minute in each case. Afterwards, the slice is centrifugated and dried at 130° C for 5 minutes.

Where the photoresist has been polymerized, the silicon oxide is protected against the etching solutions (See 3g). 3e. Covering of the rear with photoresist. Evidently it is also necessary to protect the rear of the slice against the etching solution. Otherwise the oxide would disappear on that side during etching. This must be avoided because the silicon oxide acts as a protecting layer for the silicon.

The slice is put into the spinner upside down. Again, let a number of drops of photoresist fall on the slice. For 20 seconds it is centrifugated at a rotation velocity of 6000 revs. per minute.

3f. Drying. The slice is kept at 90°C for 5 minutes.

3g. Etching.Etching is carried out for about 3 minutes in a silicon-oxide etch (1:6 HF - NH_4F in water) at room temperature^{*}). Then the slice is rinsed in deionized water and dried.

3h. Removal of photoresist. The slice is put into fuming nitric acid. Again it is rinsed in deionized water for 10 minutes and centrifugated. Now the slice is provided with windows and is ready for the silox process. Fourth step. Producing the silox layer. The slice is put into a silox reactor (Fig. 3) and kept at a temperature of 350° C for 2 minutes. The following gases are supplied to the reactor: O_2 , SiH₄, PH₃ and Ar. The last one acts as carrier gas. The silane and the phosphine are highly rarefied.

A compound of SiO_2 and P_2O_5 is formed on top of the slice in the windows as well as on the thermal oxide.

Operating instructions of silox reactor.

At the beginning of the process the taps are in the positions as indicated in Fig. 7. Turning the power switch automatically opens tap C (see Fig. 7). The switch clocks are adjusted as follows:

Clock 1 2 min. (flow of nitrogen).

- Clock 2 3 min. (deposition).
- Clock 3 2 min. (flow of nitrogen).
- Total time 7 min.

Procedure is now as follows:

- 1. Push button "LIFT": reactor is lifted.
- 2. The cleaned slice is laid down on the hot plate. Then the button marked "VACUUM" is pressed: The air below the slice is sucked away. This ensures good heat contact between the slice and the hot plate.
- 3. Press "LIFT": reactor comes down.
- 4. Press "START": Clock 1 starts. Tap A (see Fig. 7) opens automatically.

*) Be careful with the dangerous compound HF.



A, B, C, D: automatic taps 1 t/m 7 : normal taps

 $\frac{Fig. 7}{at the beginning of the process.}$

ı.

The following taps are opened manually.

Tap 1, argon. Adjust flow of gas to 7 1/min.

Tap 2, phosphine. Adjust flow of gas as required. (For example, 0.3 1/min; 2000 ppm in argon).

Tap 3, silane. Adjust flow of gas to 0.7 l/min. (1% silane in argon). Tap 5, nitrogen. Adjust flow of gas to 8 l/min.

- 5. After two minutes clock 2 will start. SiO₂ doped with phosphorus is then formed on top of the slice. Tap C is automatically closed. Tap B is automatically switched: R is connected to U and S to T. Tap D is also opened automatically (adjust the flow of oxygen to 0.1 l/min).
- 6. Close tap 2 after 2 min. (see clock 2). An additional layer of undoped SiO, is then formed.
- 7. After 3 minutes clock 3 is started. Tap B is automatically switched. Again R is connected to S, and T to U. Tap D is automatically closed. Tap C is automatically opened. Close taps 3 and 4. Open the two taps 6 and 7.
- 8. After 2 minutes clock 3 stops. Tap A is automatically closed. Close tap 1.
- 9. Press "LIFT": reactor is lifted.
- 10. Take the slice out of the reactor.
- 11. Press "LIFT": reactor comes down.
- 12. Adjust flow of nitrogen to 2 1/min.

13. Close the taps 6 and 7.

It is possible to interrupt the whole process by pressing :RESET". Nitrogen then flows through the reactor. After 2 minutes the process can be started again.

Fifth step. The SN diffusion (= shallow n-diffusion). The slice is put into a diffusion furnace for drive-in diffusion in an ambient of nitrogen for 15 minutes at a temperature of 1150° C. The nitrogen flow is 1 l/min.

Sixth step. Etching of contact windows. The slice is covered with negative photoresist HR 100 (Waycoat), placed in a photoresist spinner and gyrated at 6000 revs. per minute. Afterwards the slice is kept at 90°C for 5 minutes (steps 3a and b).

Then the slice is put into an exposure apparatus where, before exposure, the mask should be adjusted to the pattern of the windows already present.

After adjusting, the slice is exposed for 10 seconds (step 3c). The developing is done in xylene for 1 minute. Then, the slice is successively put into propanol and deionized water, for 1 minute in both cases. Further, the slice is centrifugated and dried at 130[°]C for 5 minutes. The windows in the oxide (at the front of the slice) for the contact regions are obtained by etching the slice in SiO₂ etch. At the same time the oxide layer at the **rear** is removed. Etching time has to be 6 minutes. Then, the slice is rinsed in deionized water (step 3g) and centrifugated. In order to remove the photoresist the slice is placed in fuming nitric acid. Again, one has to rinse in deionized water for 1 minute and centrifugate (step 3h).

Next, the slice is immersed in a HF dilution (4%) for 8 seconds and is rinsed in deionized water for 10 minutes. After centrifugating, the slice is ready for coating with aluminium by evaporation.

<u>Caution</u>: Touching the skin with fluor-hydrogen is dangerous. Should this happen, immediately rinse the skin thoroughly with water.

Seventh step. Applying aluminium by evaporation. A thin layer of aluminium $(0.5 - 1 \ \mu m)$ is applied to the front of the slice. This is carried out in an evaporation apparatus.

Eighth step. Etching of the aluminium. The front of the slice is covered with positive photoresist AZ 1350 (Shipley). Positive means here that the photo-resist disappears at exposed regions while developing.

To obtain a uniform layer the slice is put into the photoresist spinner, covered with a few drops of resist and gyrated at the rate of 4500 revs. per minute for 20 seconds. Then the slice is dried at $90^{\circ}C$ for 5 minutes.

The slice is then placed in the exposure apparatus. The slice is adjusted and then exposed for 10 seconds. After developing for 1 minute in AZ developer, the slice is rinsed in deionized water for 1 minute and centrifugated.

The etching proper takes place in a etch bath for aluminium at a temperature of 40° C. This etch bath contains: phosphoric acid H₃PO₄ (80%), HNO₃ (65%), acetic acid (100%) and water (ratio 15:1:3:3).

Furthermore, the slice has to be rinsed for 1 minute and centrifugated.

Finally the slice is immersed in acetone for 5 minutes to remove the photoresist, after which it is rinsed in deionized water for 10 minutes and centrifugated.

Ninth step. Heating the aluminium. In order to obtain good ohmic contacts the slice should undergo a heat treatment. It is kept at 450° C for 15 minutes in wet nitrogen flowing along the slice at a velocity of 1 l/min.

After all these steps the manufacture of diodes and resistors is completed.

5. DIFFUSION EQUATION AND IMPURITY PROFILE

Consider a silicon slice with a silox layer which contains phosphorus atoms. During the diffusion phosphorus will enter the silicon as an impurity. After the diffusion the phosphorus has a certain impurity distribution in the silicon.



Fig. 8 Diffusion of phosphorus from an axide layer

It is well known $\begin{bmatrix} 3 \end{bmatrix}$ that the diffusion is described by the equation

$$D_{1} \frac{\partial^{2} N}{\partial x^{2}} = \frac{\partial N}{\partial t}$$
(1)

where D is the diffusion constant of the impurity considered, and the function N(x,t) is the concentration of the impurity at point x at time t. We assume that the concentration is constant at the interface between oxide and silicon, so that

$$N(0,t) = N_{0}$$

The solution of the differential equation (1) that satisfies this boundary condition is

$$N(x,t) = N_{0} \{1 - erf(x/2\sqrt{Dt})\}$$

where

$$\operatorname{erf}(z) = (2\sqrt{\pi}) \int_{0}^{z} \exp(-\lambda^{2}) d\lambda.$$

It can be verified immediately by substitution in eqn. (1). Note that N(x,t) tends to zero if x tends to infinity.



Fig. 9 Impurity profile in silicon

In Fig. 9 the impurity concentration is plotted versus the position x. When N_A is the acceptor concentration of the original slice then, after diffusion, the pn junction will be found at a depth d below the surface, which is determined by the equation

$$N(d,t) = N_A$$

or

$$N_{D} \{1 - \operatorname{erf}(d/2\sqrt{Dt})\} = N_{A}$$

At the left of x = d one has n-type silicon, at the right of that plane p-type silicon. From the above theory it follows that, for known diffusion constant D, known diffusion time t and known background concentration $N_A^{,}$ the concentration profile is fixed completely, if $N_O^{}$ and d have been measured. Then, the electrical properties are determined as well.

6. APPLICATION OF MASKS

As has been observed already, the n-regions can be diffused at certain regions, defined by the available masks.



а





-13-

مدروس من المح الحم

nan Galarian Index a Robert Content

Mask 1 is for making the windows in the oxide for the diffusion (Fig. 10a). By means of mask 2 contact windows can be etched (Fig. 10b). Mask 3 is applied in order to obtain aluminium contact pads (Fig. 10c)^{*)/}. From Fig. 10d the final pattern can be read. After carrying out all the technological **steps**, we have a resistance between contacts 1 and 4, and a diode between contact 2 and the substrate. Contact 3 serves to supply a voltage to the substrate.



Fig. 11 The hatched part of the slice is used for measurements of junction depth and sheet resistance. The other part contains the diodes and the resistors.

The diffused diodes and resistors are located in a part of the slice. The other part is available for measurements of junction depth and sheet resistance (Fig. 11).

7. POSSIBLE MEASUREMENTS ON THE DEVICES

A number of measurements can be carried out by students. In our case the exercises concern

- (a) determination of the junction depth of the diffused layer,
- (b) measurements of the sheet resistance of the diffused layer,
- (c) determination of the impurity concentration N_{O} at the surface,
- (d) measurements on the current-voltage characteristic of the diodes and the influence of temperature on it,
- (e) measurement of the diffused resistances and the influence of temperature on it,

*) A drawing of the alignment equipment is available on request.

(f) measurement of the capacity of a diode and its dependence on voltage,

~ -

(g) measurement of built-in potential of a pn junction.

The theoretical background of these experiments is well known [4] and will not be described in this report.

8. DISCUSSIONS AND CONCLUSION.

We have shown that the silox process lends itself to education in the field of semiconductor technology. Until now four generations of students have passed. Students carry out the experiments in groups of two. Four students can participate in the experiments at a time. Assistance is given permanently by two persons of the staff of the university. Thanks to the chosen process the necessary technological steps can be carried out within half a day.

Acknowledgements

The authors are greatly indebted to Professor Dr. H.Groendijk for stimulating discussions on the design of the experiment and for valuable comments on the manuscript.

REFERENCES

- [1] Senitzky, B. A SEMICONDUCTOR TECHNOLOGY COURSE. IEEE Trans. Educ., Vol. E-23(1980), p. 213-218.
- [2] <u>Barry</u>, M.L.
 DOPED OXIDES AS DIFFUSION SOURCES II: Phosphorus into silicon.
 J. Electrochem. Soc., Vol. 117(1970), p. 1405-1410.
- [3] Grove, A.S. PHYSICS AND TECHNOLOGY OF SEMICONDUCTOR DEVICES. New York: Wiley, 1967.
- [4] Runyan, W.R. SEMICONDUCTOR MEASUREMENTS AND INSTRUMENTATION. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1975. Texas Instruments electronics series
- [5] <u>Mitra</u>, N.K. and C.J.H. <u>Heynen</u> APPARATUS FOR CHEMICAL VAPOR DEPOSITION OF SILICON DIOXIDE FROM SILANE GAS. Rev. Sci. Instrum., Vol. 47 (1976), p. 757-761.



Fig. 12 More detailed drawing of silox reactor. During experiments this reactor should be enclosed in a transparent cupboard with exhaust.



Fig. 13 Detail of silox reactor (see Fig. 12)





Fig. 14 Detail of silox reactor (see Fig. 12)

Appendix 2

.



Fig. 15 Laboratory (3.75 × 8.75 m8)

· · · · · ·

EINDHOVEN UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THE NETHERLANDS DEPARTMENT OF ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING

Reports:

- 105) Videc, M.F. STRALINGSVERSCHIJNSELEN IN PLASMA'S EN BEWEGENDE MEDIA: Een geometrischoptische en een golfzonebenadering. TH-Report 80-E-105. 1980. ISBN 90-6144-105-6
- 106) Hajdasiński, A.K. LINEAR MULTIVARIABLE SYSTEMS: Preliminary problems in mathematical description, modelling and identification. TH-Report 80-E-106. 1980. ISBN 90-6144-106-4
- 107) Heuvel, W.M.C. van den CURRENT CHOPPING IN SF6. TH-Report 80-E-107. 1980. ISBN 90-6144-107-2
- 108) Etten, W.C. van and T.M. Lammers TRANSMISSION OF FM-MODULATED AUDIOSIGNALS IN THE 87.5 - 108 MHz BROADCAST BAND OVER A FIBER OPTIC SYSTEM. TH-Report 80-E-108. 1980. ISBN 90-6144-108-0
- 109) Krause, J.C. SHORT-CURRENT LIMITERS: Literature survey 1973-1979. TH-Report 80-E-109. 1980. ISBN 90-6144-109-9
- 110) Matacz, J.S. UNTERSUCHUNGEN AN GYRATORFILTERSCHALTUNGEN. TH-Report 80-E-110. 1980. ISBN 90-6144-110-2
- 111) Otten, R.H.J.M. STRUCTURED LAYOUT DESIGN. TH-Report 80-E-111. 1980. ISBN 90-6144-111-0 (in preparation)
- 112) Worm, S.C.J. OPTIMIZATION OF SOME APERTURE ANTENNA PERFORMANCE INDICES WITH AND WITHOUT PATTERN CONSTRAINTS. TH-Report 80-E-112. 1980. ISBN 90-6144-112-9
- 113) Theeuwen, J.F.M. en J.A.G. Jess EEN INTERACTIEF FUNCTIONEEL ONTWERPSYSTEEM VOOR ELEKTRONISCHE SCHAKELINGEN. TH-Report 80-E-113. 1980. ISBN 90-6144-113-7
- 114) Lammers, T.M. en J.L. Manders EEN DIGITAAL AUDIO-DISTRIBUTIESYSTEEM VOOR 31 STEREOKANALEN VIA GLASVEZEL. TH-Report 80-E-114. 1980. ISBN 90-6144-114-5
- 115) Vinck, A.J., A.C.M. Oerlemans and T.G.J.A. Martens TWO APPLICATIONS OF A CLASS OF CONVOLUTIONAL CODES WITH REDUCED DECODER COMPLEXITY. TH-Report 80-E-115. 1980. ISBN 90-6144-115-3

EINDHOVEN UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THE NETHERLANDS DEPARTMENT OF ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING

Reports:

EUT Reports are a continuation of TH-Reports.

- 116) Versnel, W. THE CIRCULAR HALL PLATE: Approximation of the geometrical correction factor for small contacts. TH-Report 81-E-116, 1981. ISBN 90-6144-116-1
- 117) Fabian, K. DESIGN AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A CENTRAL INSTRUCTION PROCESSOR WITH A MULTIMASTER BUS INTERFACE. TH-Report 81-E-117. 1981. ISBN 90-6144-117-X
- 118) Wang Yen Ping ENCODING MOVING PICTURE BY USING ADAPTIVE STRAIGHT LINE APPROXIMATION. EUT Report 81-E-118. 1981. ISBN 90-6144-118-8
- 119) Heijnen, C.J.H., H.A. Jansen, J.F.G.J. Olijslagers and W. Versnel FABRICATION OF PLANAR SEMICONDUCTOR DIODES, AN EDUCATIONAL LABORATORY EXPERIMENT. EUT Report 81-E-119. 1981. ISBN 90-6144-119-6.